ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 19, 2005
9:34 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative JimElKkins
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 152

"An Act anending the definition of the term 'state agencies' as
it presently applies to the provisions of |law that establish the
Tel econmuni cations Information Council and as it applies under
Executive Order No. 113; relating to information systens in the
| egi slative branch and to the Teleconmunications |Information
Council; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 152 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 186

"An Act relating to quarterly paynents of a permanent fund
dividend, and to a permanent fund dividend and eligibility for
public assistance; and providing for an effective date."”

- MOVED HB 186 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 87
"An Act relating to notor vehicle safety belt violations."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BILL NO 114
"An Act relating to the retaining of certain privileges of a

parent in a relinquishnment and termnation of a parent and child
rel ationship proceeding; relating to eligibility for permanent

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 19, 2005



fund dividends for certain children in the custody of the state;
relating to child in need of aid proceedings and juvenile
del i nquency proceedi ngs; and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 23
"An Act relating to construction of a |egislative hall."

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 152

SHORT TI TLE: STATE | NFO SYSTEM PLAN: LEG SLATURE
SPONSCR(s) : STATE AFFAI RS

02/ 16/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 05 (H) STA, JUD

03/ 15/ 05 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 15/ 05 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 19/ 05 (H) STA AT 9: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 186

SHORT TITLE: PERVANENT FUND: QUARTERLY PAYNMENTS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) RAMRAS

02/ 28/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 28/ 05 (H STA, HES, FIN

03/ 17/ 05 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 17/ 05 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 19/ 05 (H) STA AT 9: 30 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SB 87
SHORT TI TLE: SEAT BELT VI OLATI ON AS PRI MARY OFFENSE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) BUNDE

02/ 02/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 05 (S) STA, JUD

02/ 17/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 17/ 05 (S) Moved SB 87 Qut of Committee
02/ 17/ 05 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 18/ 05 (S) STA RPT 2DP 2NR

02/ 18/ 05 (S) NR. THERRI AULT, HUGG NS

02/ 18/ 05 (S) DP: ELTON, WAGONER

03/ 01/ 05 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 01/ 05 (S) Moved SB 87 Qut of Committee

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 19, 2005



03/ 01/ 05 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 02/ 05 (S) JUD RPT 3DP 2NR

03/ 02/ 05 (S) DP: SEEKI NS, FRENCH, GUESS

03/ 02/ 05 (S) NR. THERRI AULT, HUGG NS

03/ 03/ 05 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 03/ 05 (S) VERSI O\: SB 87

03/ 04/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 04/ 05 (H STA, JUD

03/ 19/ 05 (H STA AT 9:30 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

PAUL DI CK, Chief

PFD Qperati ons

Per manent Fund D vi dend (PFD) Division

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding HB 186.

LAUREN W CKERSHAM St af f

to Senator Con Bunde

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 87 on behalf of Senator Bunde,
sponsor .

LI EUTENANT TODD SHARP

Al aska State Troopers

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of "law enforcenent in
the state of Al aska"” in support of SB 86.

JOHN COOPER

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself during the
hearing on SB 87; related a story of his own son's death in a
vehicle accident and said the |egislature has an obligation to
the people of the state of Al aska to set standards of conduct.

JO ANNE COTTLE

Nat i onal Active and Retired Feder al Enpl oyees ( NARFE)
Associ ati on;

AARP Capital City Task Force

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of AARP in support of
SB 87.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 19, 2005



DON SM TH, Adm ni strat or

H ghway Safety O fice

Di vi sion of Program Devel opnent

Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Ofered details for wvarious conmttee
packet handouts during the hearing on SB 87, particularly
pertaining to a survey conducted to record the behaviors and
perceptions surroundi ng seatbelts; answered conm ttee questions.

JAMES GARHART

aka "Lazy Mountain Jin

Wasilla, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself during the
hearing on SB 87.

Cl NDY CASHEN

Nat i onal Council on Al coholism and Drug Dependence

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the council that SB
87 woul d save |ives and noney.

DARW N BI VEER, Pr esi dent

Cabaret Hotel Restaurant & Retailers Association (CHARR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of CHARR in opposition
to SB 87.

KEVI N QUI NLAN, Chief of Safety Advocacy

Nat i onal Transportation Safety Board (NTSB)

(No address provided)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: On behalf of NTSB, asked the conmttee to
give a favorable report to SB 87.

DEBORAH CHOROVANSKI HULL-JILLY, Acting Chief

Community Health & Energency Medical Services

Division of Public Health, Departnent of Health & Socia
Servi ces (DHSS)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the departnent in
support of SB 87.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:34:42 AM Present at the call
to order were Representatives Gatto, Elkins, Lynn, Ranras,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 19, 2005



Gardner, and Seaton. Representative Guenberg arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

HB 152- STATE | NFO SYSTEM PLAN: LEG SLATURE

9: 35:44 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 152, "An Act anending the definition of the term
"state agencies' as it presently applies to the provisions of

|l aw that establish the Telecomunications Information Council

and as it applies under Executive Oder No. 113; relating to
information systens in the Ilegislative branch and to the
Tel econmuni cations Information Council; and providing for an
effective date."

CHAI R SEATON handed the gavel to Representative Gatto while he
presented HB 152 on behalf of the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee, sponsor. He indicated that Executive Oder (EO 113

noved the telecomunications information council to the
Department of Adm nistration. He said the definition wwthin [EO
113] included the Ilegislature, which was an oversight. He

explained that the legislature had the choice at the tine of
either not approving EO 113 or approving it and correcting the
error with a future bill. The proposed HB 152 is such a bill.
He specified that HB 152 would only correct the oversight; it
would not exenpt the railroad, the permanent fund, or the
[ Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC)].

CHAI R SEATON t ook back the gavel and opened public testinony.
9:37:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if Chair Seaton knew of anyone who
objected to this bill.

CHAI R SEATON replied that he had not heard objections.

9:38: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to report HB 152 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 152 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

HB 186- PERMANENT FUND: QUARTERLY PAYMENTS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 19, 2005



9:39: 16 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 186, "An Act relating to quarterly paynents of a
permanent fund dividend, and to a permanent fund dividend and
eligibility for public assistance; and providing for an
effective date.”

9:39:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS, as sponsor of HB 186, introduced the
bill. He explained:

[ The intent of the bill is to] try and broaden the
dynamic nature of the permanent fund dividend [ PFD]
benefit that all Al askans enjoy. The concern | have

behind creating a quarterly paynent program for the
[PFD] is that in ny own personal experience wth
people that I work with and people that | know, the
sign-up period for the [PFD] ends March 31, and we all
are paid by direct deposit or by check sonetine
generally in the nonth of COctober. There are a |ot of

retail inducenments in the fall season, during the
permanent fund season, t hat some  of us can't
wi thstand, and | have nmany friends by their own
volition that will share with ne that they' re not good

noney managers and that, given the opportunity to use
a $1,000 [PFD] check, they will find thenselves wth
$19,000 in new term debt within a week of receiving

their [PFD].

A quarterly paynent program for the [PFD], which would
pay out in Cctober one quarter ... and another quarter
in January, another quarter in April, and another

quarter in July, would be available only for folks
that opt for a direct deposit paynent. There would be
| anguage that woul d discourage anybody who is

receiving public assistance, because ... the dividend
program offers one annual exenption which is in
Oct ober. Anybody who is receiving public assistance
would be ill advised to take this program because it
m ght affect their public assistance the other three-
quarters. ... Permanent fund folks have an objective

of trying to get everybody on direct deposit so this
dovetails nicely into their program Qur office has
worked with the [PFD] board and the Departnent of
Revenue in trying to tailor this program W' ve had

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 19, 2005



correspondence with them for sone weeks, so even if we
don't agree on all points, we have been working
closely with the [PFD] board.

9:.42: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS cont i nued:
The notion is that for sonme single wage earner
househol ds or sone dual wage earner households ... it

m ght be useful and affective for people to receive
partial paynents in January to cover hone heating oil

expenses; April - spring projects; July - summer
vacati ons. That mght <create an opportunity for
people to see their [PFD] other than ... an annual

dividend and/or a mechanism for saving in the
university credits.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS noted that the Anchorage Daily News
carried an editorial stating that it was not in favor of this
proposal, and that it wasn't the obligation of the PFD board to
get involved in household budgeting. He responded, "I would
gquestion that because folks that | know that have participated
in the university's education credit program have found that's
been a very useful instrunent in being able to set aside nobney
for their kids' education.” He said that his proposal is
simlar in that it would allow people to space out their
di vi dend.

9:43: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS renm nded conmttee nenbers that if nothing
is changed in the PFD program there wll be significant
dividend growh in the future. He noted that the bill would
require the permanent fund division to nake $150,000 worth of
changes to the conmputer system The final fiscal note is

$300, 000, which he said would basically cost each Al askan 50
cents. He stated:

Because the permanent fund is legislated, it's a
specific anmount.... People that opted to participate
in this program would not accrue interest in this
program neaning that the state would enjoy collecting

quarterly dividend interest.... After the initial
setup ... the program would be self-sustaining; it
woul d actually generate a positive fiscal note. And
so, you'll see when you review the attached fiscal

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 19, 2005



notes that the revenue comng into the permanent fund
increases in later years...

9:46: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER remarked that this was an intriguing
i dea, but she was puzzled by inplenentation. She asked for
further clarification about the quarterly paynents.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said an individual would fill out the
application in March and receive the first quarterly paynent in
October of this year, then additional paynents in January,
April, and July of the next year. The individual would have the
option of changing back to single paynents the next year. He
mentioned that M chael J. Burns, the Executive D rector of the
Al aska Pernmanent Fund Corporation, is in favor of the program

9:49: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN commented that the state would be basically
hol ding three-quarters of the checks, so [the state] would be
earning the interest.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said that's correct. He noted that if an
i ndividual was to hold his/her PFD check for a year wthout
cashing or depositing it, the state would earn interest on that
check. He said the idea for the quarterly paynents of the PFD
cane fromthe | ongevity bonus paynents.

9:53:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS asked what would happen if the PFD check
anounts went down. He asked, "Is there sone point that if it
goes down the quarterly dividend paynent would not be
avai | abl e?"

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said he doesn't think so. He comment ed,
"At a certain point it would be a wash as to whether the program
was able to be self-sustaining, but it would be within pennies.”
He offered an exanple to denonstrate that the state wll be
earning interest on the quarterly paynent system

9:56: 30 AM
CHAIR SEATON noted that nobst |ower incone people don't have

quarterly bills to pay. He asked why Representative Ranras
didn't look into making the change to nonthly paynents rather

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 19, 2005



than quarterly paynents. He also asked if the permanent fund
di vision had indicated that there would be any difference in the
fees [for nonthly paynents].

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS replied, "The thought process [was] that

if it was a nonthly paynment, then we mght invite an
i neffectiveness .... If it's $80 a nmonth, | don't know whet her
that's especially helpful. | think that it would nake it

considerably nore expensive for the permanent fund division."
He commented that people's paychecks also don't correlate with

bills either. He continued, "I think it would be a m snomer to
think that this is designed for |lower incone famlies. | think
that this is designed for mddle incone famlies.” As an

exanpl e, he described the possibility that a famly would choose
to receive one of the famly's PFD checks quarterly for
househol d budgeti ng.

9:59: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if a garnished PFD check would have
to be garnished four tines a year, or if there is sonme way to do
it all at once.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS deferred the question to the chief of
per manent fund di vi dend operations. He conmented:

| don't want folks who are on public assistance who
are very inportant contributing nenbers of our society
to discourage a program that is really tailored
toward lower ... [to] upper mddle inconme folks that
are collecting these [checks] across the state. I
think that the notion is to steer clear of sticky
pickets ... and to allow people to participate in the
[PFD] fund in a little bit nore of a dynam c fashion.

10: 01: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO r enar ked:

| think the current [public assistance] systemis that
because the person of public assistance gets $1,000
[ PFD check] all at one tine, that for that nonth they
don't qualify. And so we have this forgiveness built
into the program that reinburses them for the anount
they would | ose. However, you're only entitled to
that once a year. If they take quarterly paynents
then won't they get stung for paynents two, three, and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 19, 2005



four, because they don't have a forgiveness that
they're eligible for anynore?

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS replied that this is correct, and
therefore he reiterated that there would be |anguage on the
application that would discourage anybody who receives public
assistance from participating in this program He reiterated
that this programis designed for mddle-incone people, not for
peopl e on public assistance or | ower inconme people.

10: 03: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted Representative Ranras' estinmation
that the cost of setting up this program would be about
$300, 000, which he had stated would equal 50 cents per person in
the state. However, she pointed out that if only 1 percent of
the applicants participate, that cost to participants would be
$50 per person. Additionally, she noted:

And yet, if it's a $1,000 dividend, the dividend would
earn sonething less than the unclained funds that are
sitting there for these 6,000 people, [and] would earn
sonething less than $20 apiece at [the] current
interest rate, so basically the rest of the program
and all the rest of the recipients would be bearing
nore than half of the cost for a very few people who
m ght participate.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS replied that if this was a one-tine
program this assessnment would be correct. However, he said, in
the years 2007-2011, "the change in revenue actually exceeds the
operating expense; this program actually nakes noney through the
general fund, and we actually over tine would recoup the
$300, 000 in set up costs.”

10: 04: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked how many applicants would have to
participate for this to work.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS responded that he didn't know what the
assunptions were in the conpletion of the fiscal note. He said
that each participating individual's unpaid quarterly portions
would generate for the state about $15 in interest in the
general fund, while the cost of admnistering the program would
cost about $3 per person. He remarked that representatives of
the Al aska Pernmanent Fund Corporation have been asked by

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 19, 2005



residents if the PFD checks could be left in the permanent fund
and have the noney invested |like a nmutual fund. He continued:

The other benefit that may be derived here in the Bush
and sone of the nore vulnerable nenbers of our
community is: oftentinmes the permanent fund payout
results in sonme degree of substance abuse and noney
that is spent |ess wsely. And it's not the state
telling people what to do, but it is giving people
.. who may recognize that they don't spend noney
wisely when they get it in a lunp sum [the
opportunity] to participate in a program that would
stretch it out over tine.

10: 07: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "When does the person receiving
the noney becone legally entitled to it? ... If there are going
to be quarterly paynents, is the person legally entitled to that
noney at the time of the first paynent, or not wuntil he's
recei ved each quarterly paynent?"

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS responded that he thought it would be no
different than a contract, where the recipient has agreed to the
terms of the contractual agreenent.

CHAIR SEATON attenpted to clarify Representative Guenberg's
guestion; he explained that there are tax consequences if the
reci pient takes the noney in one year versus the next year.

10: 09: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that his question was not
about tax conseguences. He asked who would receive the
subsequent paynents if a person died before the last three
gquarters of the paynment were nade.

CHAI R SEATON requested that technical questions such as this be
posed to the representatives fromthe permanent fund.

10:10: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER comrent ed:
[ Representative Ranras was] tal king about the people

who don't manage noney who are |ower inconme who m ght
use it on drugs or whatever, or people who are on

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 19, 2005



public assi stance. ... Wen | first heard about this

bill, I thought, "Well, that's really great for people
who have a hard tinme managing noney to get this in
little bits.” ... But it looks like the way this is
worded and the way the bill is focused, it's not for
t hose peopl e. It's for people who still would have
access to all their vices based on their own incone if
that's what they chose to do. So, ... it seens to ne

that the target population is not the people who would
really benefit from having the anounts of noney spread
out over a long period of tine.

10:11: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS responded that he thinks the people who
woul d benefit from the program are those that "voluntarily
choose to check the box and would enjoy receiving their
dividend on a quarterly basis.” He noted that those people nay
be in any inconme range. He gave exanples of other people who
m ght wish to participate in this program

10: 13: 39 AM

CHAI R SEATON remarked that he thinks Representative Gardner's
gquestion is well answered on a single page handout in the
conmm ttee packet, which says, "Therefore an individual or famly
receiving public assistance should not apply for the quarterly
di vidend paynent since the quarterly paynents nay nake them
ineligible for any public assistance for three-quarters of the
year."

10: 14: 26 AM

PAUL DI CK, Chief, PFD Operations, Permanent Fund D vidend (PFD)
Di vision, Department of Revenue, reiterated the function of HB
186. M. Dick said that the division wuld foresee
adm nistering the program such that if a person's wages were
garnished, the division wuld not allow that person the
quarterly option. If a person's wage was garnished part way
through the year, the division would process the garnishnent
records in full and then the balance would go to the applicant.
He noted that the division has built into the fiscal note sone
costs for such scenari os.

10: 16: 22 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 19, 2005



CHAI R SEATON asked what the tax consequences of this program
would be, and when noney is officially considered to be
recei ved.

MR. DI CK responded that the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) can't

answer this question for certain until the bill is in final
form but, he noted, "all indications seemto point to where the
bill would be taxable as a whole in that dividend year, and they
|l ook at it as a defernent of paynent. So you have a right to

the dividend in COctober and then you are voluntarily opting to
receive that noney in quarterly paynents thereafter.”

10:17:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how many PFD garnishnents there
currently are statew de.

MR DICK replied that last year the division processed 73,000
gar ni shnment records for a total of $30 million

10: 18: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER poi nted out that the fiscal note supposes
a 5,000-person participation in the program She asked how that
nunber was reached.

MR DICK answered that it was estimated that roughly 1 percent
woul d parti ci pate.

REPRESENTATI VE  GARDNER asked, " So, if only 500 people
participated, it'd be a pretty expensive program..."

MR DICK replied that the fiscal note includes staffing costs to
answer questions from the participants and from the public. He
also noted that there are sone "per transaction"” fees on the
di rect deposits.

10:19:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the IRS will take the position
[that the PFD check is taxable as a whole in that dividend year,
even when the <check 1is received quarterly] weven if the
i ndividual is on a cash rather than an accrual basis.

MR. DICK answered that he "hadn't really explored that wth

them" He said, "I think we were |looking at it as a cash basis
orientation.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 19, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG remarked, " That sounds |ike an
aggressive position to nme. |If this bill passes, | hope that you
wll do that, because otherwi se these people will be taxed on
t he noney even though they haven't received it."

MR DICK replied that's correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG continued, "As | understand the current
situation, if you're eligible and then you go through the
formality of nmaking the application between January and March

at that point you are legally entitled to the noney, although it
may not be payable until October of that vyear. Am | not
correct?"

MR. DICK responded, "Assuming you're eligible, then paynent
comes in Cctober."

10: 20: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked how the division would handle the
remai ning paynments if a person died after the first paynent was
received.

MR. DICK responded that he thinks the division would follow
current procedure, in which the check is issued to the estate.

10: 22: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if it would be up to the
recipient to advise the division of a new address, or if the
state would be liable if the check was |ost due to an address
change.

MR, DICK pointed out that the quarterly paynent would only be
al l owed for direct deposit checks.

10: 22: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, regarding garnished checks, asked
about intervening creditors.

MR DICK answered, "W would pull those persons out of that
direct deposit quarterly option stream wherever they are in
that stream If there's a garnishnent against the record, we
woul d process the garnishnment record in whole and take the
bal ance [to send to the applicant].”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 19, 2005



10: 23: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that normally a garni shnment order
is continued until satisfied or term nated. He asked if a
gar ni shnment order would stay through the whole four quarters.

MR. DI CK responded, "Wien we'd process the dividend, we would
honor that garnishnent in whole and it wouldn't continue on."
He confirnmed that the creditor wouldn't have to wait until the
followi ng quarters to receive the noney.

10: 25: 02 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked what kind of <cost effects nonthly PFD
paynents woul d have on the division.

MR, DICK stated concern regarding a nonthly paynent. He said
the division could do it, but it is already involved in
di fferent processes, which would have to be interrupted 12 tines
a year in order to go through a direct deposit distribution,
including getting paperwork out to the applicants and invol ving
an accounting reconciliation process.

10: 26: 10 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated his understanding that once the information
is in the system the system automatically cuts a check, whether
it happens nonthly or quarterly. He commented that he would
like to see an analysis of the proposed program In conparing
the proposed program to the longevity bonus, he remarked that
people can count on nonthly checks, whereas he isn't certain
peopl e "count on things quarterly."”

MR, DICK said he would do that anal ysis.

10: 27: 10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO turned to the division's annual report and
poi nted out what he perceived to be a msprint. He then asked
if the cost of the program is borne by the division or by the
state. He offered his understanding that the interest gained by
hol di ng the noney goes to the state.

MR DICK replied that the cost of the program is through
appropriation to the PFD program in annual appropriation. The

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 19, 2005



interest on the remaining quarterly paynents would go to the
general fund.

10: 29: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS turned to page 29 of the division's annua

report and pointed out that about 1 percent of the PFD
applicants opt into the university savings program He asked
M. Dick what the division's perspective is on this program

MR DICK replied that he thinks it's a positive program and he
hasn't heard any conpl aints about it.

10: 30: 00 AM

MR, DICK, in response to a question from Representative Ranras,
confirmed that the wuniversity savings program is an annua
optional program

10: 30: 33 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked for further clarification regarding taxes on
PFD i ncone.

MR DICK reiterated that the full anount of the dividend is
taxed for that year.

CHAIR SEATON restated that he would |ike the permanent fund
division to submt an analysis of nonthly versus quarterly
payment s.

10: 32: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER renarked that a mddle-income person
woul d be better off getting the whole PFD check in Cctober and
using it to buy a 90-day, 120-day, and 180-day bond.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS r esponded:

Wuldn't it be great to get your per diem ... for
wor ki ng down here [in Juneau], all on January 10, and
then budget it out? O for that matter to get your
annual paycheck and to get it in one single paynent?
The idea is just to provide another option, insofar as
we |look at the [PFD]. It is a very one dinensional
product right now, and | think that it would behoove
all Alaskans to look at it as a nore dynam c vehicle

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 19, 2005



for wus. And frankly, people as a whole, ... we're
| azy. W don't denobnstrate good savings habits.

10: 34: 11 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked what the nonthly incone is for a househol d of
four that would fall under the public assistance program

MR DICK answered that he is not famliar with the public
assi stance program

CHAI R SEATON asked the sponsor to find that information out.

10: 35: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said he would be wlling to have the
commttee hold the bill so that he could get those answers.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if these issues could be dealt with in
the next commttee [of referral].

CHAI R SEATON replied that would be fine.

10: 36: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO presented a scenario in which the PFD
program was originally set up to be a quarterly paying system
and then it was proposed that the checks be cut just once a
year . Representative Gatto asked Representative Ranras, "Wuld
you oppose it based on the fact that there are sone people that
m ght waste this noney and buy things that would cause them to
get in deeper debt? O would you support that this one paynent
year sounds |like a pretty good idea?"

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS replied that the word "waste" is not the

word he's interested in, but the word "hopeful" is. He again
referred to the proposal as a household budgeting tool. He
noted that 98 or 99 percent of Alaskans will continue to receive
t he annual checks. He stated, "It sinply puts another option on

the table that doesn't cost the state anything, and the
participant sinply foregoes the opportunity cost of having saved
it intoa CD, and has lost the interest...."

10: 37: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to report HB 186 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 19, 2005



not es. There being no objections, HB 186 was reported out of
the House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

#

The conmittee took an at-ease from 10:38:56 AMto 10:49:46 AM

SB 87- SEAT BELT VI OLATI ON AS PRI MARY OFFENSE

10: 49: 57 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the last order of business was
SENATE BILL NO. 87, "An Act relating to notor vehicle safety
belt violations."

10: 50: 16 AM

LAUREN W CKERSHAM Staff to Senator Con Bunde, Alaska State
Legislature, presented SB 87 on behalf of Senator Bunde,
sponsor . She noted that the bill would change the current
seatbelt |law from secondary to prinmary status. She stated that
a change in enforcenent powers would lead to a 10-15 percent

increase in seatbelt use. That increase alone would save six
lives in the first year. Additionally, Al askan residents
annually spend mllions of dollars on notor vehicle crashes.

Because wearing a seatbelt wusually nmeans a crash is |less
damagi ng, the law would save a significant anmount of nobney in
that respect, as well. Ms. Wckersham reported that in 2002
Al aska residents spent $820 per person on notor vehicle crashes.
She noted that 85 percent of all costs involved in those crashes
are paid by society, whether directly through insurance prem uns
or indirectly through energency services and nedi cal costs.

10: 52: 04 AM

M5. W CKERSHAM reported that surveys indicate nationally and in
Al aska that individuals support strong seatbelt |[|aws. She
directed attention to a telephone survey in the conmmttee
packet, which was taken of 586 Al askans. The survey showed that

79.6 percent supported laws requiring seatbelt use. Ms.
W ckersham stated that Al aska has one of the highest rates of
injury and wunintentional death of all 50 states, and notor

vehi cl e crashes are the |eading type of accidents - by twi ce the
anount of the next |eading cause. She concluded by telling the
commttee nenbers that Senator Bunde urges their support of SB
86.

10: 53:17 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 19, 2005



LI EUTENANT TODD SHARP, Al aska State Troopers, stated that he was
testifying on behalf of "law enforcenent in the state of Al aska"
in support of SB 86. He said seatbelts reduce injuries, reduce
the risk of death, keep people from being ejected, and help the
driver maintain control of the vehicle. Li eut enant Sharp urged
the commttee to listen to all the testinony being provided
during the neeting and to support primary seatbelt |aws.

10: 54: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said the seatbelt restricts him from being
able to fully turn to |ook back before changing lanes, so in a
sense it interferes with his ability to drive safely.

10: 54: 59 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP expl ai ned that what he had neant is that when
people are in a situation when they may be |osing control of the
vehicle, the seatbelt can help keep the occupants in place. He
added that when a seatbelt is worn properly, it's not supposed
to inhibit a person's ability to drive.

10: 56: 00 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP, in response to a followup coment from
Representative Gatto, said that the sane seatbelt can work for a
wi de variety of people, because nmany nodern vehicles are being
designed wth alternate seatbelt adjustnents and there are
adj ustments that can be purchased for seatbelts.

10: 56: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about school buses and airpl anes that
don't require the use of a seatbelt. He asked Lieutenant Sharp,
"Wul d you say there are plenty of instances where the use of a
seatbelt is certainly of no benefit?"

10: 56: 33 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP replied that he would not say there are
incidents where a seatbelt, when worn properly, does not assist
a person in a crash.

10: 57: 05 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 19, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN comrented that shoul der harnesses are worn
in nost mlitary-type aircraft and in many |ight planes.

10: 57: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS expressed appreciation of Lieutenant
Sharp's service to the state and for the Al aska State Troopers
and all public safety workers. He said the same argunents [for
wearing seatbelts] could be made in regard to gun control, and
he offered an exanple. He voiced his concern that [the proposed
| egi slation] may just nake things harder on people who are good
citizens and would be bad citizens who are stopped for not
following laws. He said, "Who can not agree with all the data?
W want to save lives, we want people to be happier and
heal thier, but they don't want to wear [seatbelts].” He asked
Li eut enant Sharp how he woul d address that.

10: 59: 33 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP rem nded Representative Ranras that the state
currently has a secondary seatbelt |aw. The bill would make it
a primary one, which would allow | aw enforcenent to "nmake a stop
on sonebody solely because they were not wearing a seatbelt”;
however, probable cause still would have to be established
before the officer would try and make a stop for that particul ar
of f ense.

11: 00: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked, "Sir, why wuld you stop nme?
Because |I'mnot wearing it?"

11: 00: 26 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP said that, during his drive to the capitol this
nor ni ng, he probably passed 100 cars, but only saw one person he

could say with certainty was not wearing his seatbelt. If the
proposed | egislation had already been |law, he could have stopped
that one person with probable cause. |In response to a follow up

question from Representative Ranras, he said the present fine
for not wearing a seatbelt is $15.

11: 02: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS, regarding the primary seatbelt |[|aw,
asked, "Does it enhance conpliance or is it just kinda ... a
pain in the butt for fol ks?"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 19, 2005



11: 02: 34 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP noted that there are already plenty of reasons
to stop a vehicle. For exanple, with the inclenment weather in
Al aska, vehicles take abuse and many tines license plates are
obscur ed. He said this is not about |ooking for a reason to
stop soneone in a vehicle; it's about saving |ives and
protecting people. He concluded, "The object is not ne issuing
you a citation; it's sinply getting you to wear your seatbelt.
And perhaps you would go away with wearing your seatbelt, and I
would go away with telling you to have a good day, know ng that
you woul d be driving down the street with your seatbelt [on]."

11: 03: 31 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked Lieutenant Sharp to detail the procedures he
woul d go through during the process of stopping soneone for not
wearing a seatbelt [under a primary seatbelt |aw.

11: 03: 47 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP said that, after establishing probable cause
for the stop, before initiating the stop he would already have
contacted dispatch to report the license nunber of the vehicle,
how many people were in the vehicle, the |ocation, and any other
concerns. Then he said he would initiate the stop in the safest
| ocation possible, contact the driver and ask the driver for
his/her driver's |license and registration. If everything
checked out and there were no other problenms, he said he would
choose at that tinme to issue a warning and let the person know
that there is a primary seatbelt law, or he would issue the
citation and provide the driver with a copy of it. In response
to followup questions from Chair Seaton, he said the $15 fine
[for the <current secondary seatbelt Jlaw] 1is a "bailable"
of fense, and he said there is not presently any "escal ation" for
st oppi ng soneone for a second or third tine.

11: 05: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked, "lIsn't there always sonething that
you can stop a car for?"

11: 06: 52 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 19, 2005



LI EUTENANT SHARP answered no. He said there are vehicles in
Al aska that are well maintained and "appear perfectly fine
driving down the road, w thout any other problem™

11: 07:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO surm sed that the occupants [in those well -
mai nt ai ned cars] are wearing their seatbelts.

11: 07: 19 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP said officers generally are not |ooking for the
offense [of not wearing a seatbelt], because there is currently
no primary seatbelt law. He said, "W're |ooking for violations
that are going to establish probable cause so we can nake a stop
on a vehicle.

11: 07: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked for clarification regarding the man in
the vehicle wthout a seatbelt on, to whom Lieutenant Sharp had
previously referred.

11: 07: 58 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP expl ai ned that under current |aw he could not
stop the man for not wearing a seatbelt, because he saw no ot her
defects that he noticed on that vehicle at that tine. In
response to a followup question from Representative Lynn, he
specified that if, for exanple, he stopped a car for speeding
and could articulate that he had observed the occupant was not
wearing a belt at present or before the stop - in the case of
soneone quickly putting the seatbelt on after being stopped -
then he could issue a ticket for the speeding and for the
failure to wear a seatbelt. In response to a question from
Chair Seaton regarding sonmeone who had not had the seatbelt on
but put it on upon being stopped, he said there would be no
further offense for lying to a police officer; the fine would
still be $15.

11: 09: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKI NS suggested that if the fine was raised to
$100, for exanmple, that nmay acconplish alnost as nmuch as
[ passing a primary seatbelt |aw].

11:10: 22 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 19, 2005



LI EUTENANT SHARP responded that certainly nore people have
adhered to other regulations in greater nunbers when the
penalties for them have been increased, sinply because the
penalties are so significant. Notw thstanding that, he rem nded
the commttee of [Ms. Wockersham s] previous testinony that in
those states that have passed a prinmary seatbelt law, the result
has been that a significant nunber of people wear their seatbelt
because there is a law and they are aware of it.

11:10:48 AM

CHAI R SEATON indicated that in the statute relating to driving
under the influence (DU), a person is [considered to be
operating a vehicle even] when he/she is sitting in a parking

| ot behind the wheel of a vehicle with its engine running. He
asked, "Is that also the case here? |Is that sane definition of
operating a vehicle or driving a vehicle ... applicable here, as
wel | ?"

LI EUTENANT SHARP offered his understanding that Chair Seaton was
asking: "Wether or not your keys are in the ignition, is that
operating the vehicle?"

CHAI R SEATON sai d yes.

LI EUTENANT SHARP said, "That definition is the same across the
board for operating a vehicle."

11:11:10 AM

CHAI R SEATON said he is leery of local police in small towns who
may be "very down on sonebody." He asked if [that "sonmebody"]
could be cited for [a driving violation] if he/she gets in the
car and has just put the key in the ignition.

11:12: 13 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP responded as fol |l ows:

| think | msunderstood your question before about
operating the vehicle. It would be a noving vehicle
for your seatbelt use, and private property would be
not ... covered under this regulation. It would be on
state or public roadways.

11:12: 36 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 19, 2005



CHAI R SEATON said, "So, this is different than the drunk driving
statutes - operating vehicles while intoxicated." He said he
had a friend who was in a parking lot, with the key in the
ignition and the heater on. That friend fell asleep in the car
and "they got him for drunk driving," even though he was not on
a road or "doing anything." He stated that he wants to ensure
that it's clear that "this statute doesn't fall into those sane
paraneters.”

LI EUTENANT SHARP responded, "That's ny understanding.”

11:12: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked if a good way to crystallize the
argunment [for and against a primary seatbelt law] is that sone
people feel it does not encourage personal responsibility and
think that education is nore effective than enforcenent, while
others believe that it would save lives. He indicated that he
had read various e-mails, as well as the witten testinony of
Kevin E. Qinlan, Chief, Safety Advocacy Division, National
Transportation Safety Board (NTSB), included in the conmttee
packet . He noted that the testinmony from M. Quinlan states
that the primary enforcenent of seatbelt Ilaws can neke a
difference in seatbelt use. That increase in use has been shown
to be greater for mnorities, males, youth, and those driving
pi ck-up trucks, and is based on the perceived risk of being
st opped.

11:15: 32 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP responded that the way that Representative
Ranras described the argument was pretty good. He reiterated
that [the reason for a primary seatbelt law] 1is "all about
saving lives, preventing injury, and keeping people from being
ej ected.”

11:15: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked Lieutenant Sharp if he would concur
that there is a msperception by people that |aw enforcenent
cares nore about ticketing fol ks than about people's safety. He
pointed out that it's the Departnent of Public Safety - not the
Depart ment of Public Ticketing.

11: 16: 38 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 19, 2005



LI EUTENANT SHARP replied that's correct. He said, "If | never
had to issue a summons like this or deal with arresting folks

., 1'"d have the greatest job going, going around and saying
"hell o' to folks."

11:17: 09 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP, in response to a question from Representative
Gatto regarding what steps the departnment would take in the
event that the primary seatbelt law is passed, said he foresees
that it would undergo an education process simlar to the
current "dick It O Ticket" canpaign, as well as talking to the
comunity and to children in public schools to advocate the use
of seatbelts and inform them of the new primary seatbelt |aw.
Furthernore, the departnment may decide to issue people warnings
rather than tickets in the beginning. He reiterated the issue
of safety and prevention of injury and death.

11:18: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said police and troopers won't have tine to
address other issues if they are stopping people to talk to them
about using a seatbelt, because the departnent won't spend extra
noney and the force wll be the sane. He |isted severa

exanpl es of bad driving. He suggested that [a primary seatbelt
| aw] woul d make this issue the nost dangerous thing that happens
and everything "below it" wll be ignored. He asked if that
makes sense.

11:19:18 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP said the Al aska State Troopers are out |ooking
for the nore significant offenses, not the m nor ones.

11:19: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted that, according to the previously
menti oned handout from Lieutenant Sharp, 23 percent of Al askans
currently do not wear a seatbelt. She asked if it is known who
t hese people are and why they don't buckle up. For exanple, do
they drive older cars with no seatbelts in the back seat?

11: 20: 15 AM

LI EUTENANT SHARP deferred coment to sonmeone involved in public
safety or wth the Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 19, 2005



11: 20: 44 AM

JOHN COOPER, testifying on behalf of hinself, told the commttee
that his youngest son was killed in car accident |ast Hall oween.
He said there were two other people in the vehicle who were
injured. He added, "One of those said that they weren't wearing
seatbelts.” He said he and the boy's nother had drummed into
their son's head the inportance of wearing a seatbelt. He said,
"The autopsy report indicated injuries consistent with him
havi ng been wearing a seatbelt, even if the other two weren't."
M. Cooper said that if the primary seatbelt |aw had been in
effect and the occupants of the car had seen a police officer at
the right tinme, his son's life mght have been saved, and the
injuries of the other two people in the vehicle m ght have been
significantly reduced.

11: 22: 10 AM

MR. COOPER revealed that he is a consulting engineer and, as
such, wites construction contracts. He said there is a lot of
simlarity of contract witing and "what you' re |ooking at right
now," and he offered anal ogi es between the two. He tal ked about

the difference in using "will" versus "shall"; the former does
not carry as nuch weight as the latter. Currently there is
| anguage in the law that says, "You wll wear seatbelts.” He

said there is a little bit of a penalty if a person does not
wear a seatbelt, but "the ways of getting to that penalty are so
difficult that nobody wll pursue them" He added, "It also
carries the nessage that we really don't care all that nuch.”

11: 24: 09 AM

MR. COOPER said that norality and intelligence cannot be
| egi sl ated, but the |egislature can set standards of conduct and

"put teeth in those standards."” He opined that, regarding the
primary seatbelt |aw, whether or not an officer ever wites a
ticket is irrelevant. Wiat is relevant is that the |egislature

cares enough and pl aces enough inportance on the issue to put it
in witing.

11:26: 31 AM

MR. COOPER said he doesn't know if a primary seatbelt |aw would
have saved his son's life or not. He told of an accident his
wife had in the 70s and of the injuries she sustained, which he
said probably could have been avoided if she had been wearing a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 19, 2005



seat bel t. M. Cooper said he flew in the mlitary and believes
in the four-point harness system which he said is the ultimte
in safety. He concluded as foll ows:

But we do have sonething that is a whole lot better

t han not hi ng. You all [have] the ability to nove
f orward what I see as essentially bei ng a
specification that says, "Thou shalt."” And | think

it's your obligation to the people of the state of
Al aska to set that standard of conduct, and say, "Thou
shalt wear a seatbelt.”

[ SEVERAL COWM TTEE MEMBERS] expressed synpathy for M. Cooper's
| oss.

11:28: 40 AM

JO- ANNE COTTLE, National Active and Retired Federal Enployees
(NARFE) Association; AARP Capital Gty Task Force, stated that
AARP strongly supports the seatbelt |aw She said, "It wll
keep us old folks alive, and probably we won't get quite as
badly hurt if we get into vehicle accident.”

11:29: 13 AM

DON SMTH, Admnistrator, H ghway Safety Ofice, Division of
Program Devel opnent, Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities, said he began his service as a nenber of "this body"
just over 38 years ago, during the Fifth Alaska State
Legi slature. He said he wi shes he had known many years ago what

he knows today about highway safety issues. He reported that
since January of 1967, over ... 3,633 Alaskans have died in
hi ghway crashes in Al aska. He directed attention to [a five-

page] handout in the commttee packet, [entitled, "2005 Al aska
H ghway Fatalities"], which shows the nunbers of deaths per year
[from 2000 through March 2005]. Since speaking on this issue
| ast year before the legislature, 85 Alaskans have died in
aut onobil e crashes on Al aska's highways. He said that it's
realistic to assune that 9 of the 85 people would probably be
alive today if they had worn seatbelts.

MR SMTH turned to [pages 3-5] of the handout. He said the
seatbelt bill, if enacted, would reach a category of Al askans
that primarily fall in the age group from 16 to the late 20s,
men or boys, and pick-up truck drivers. He said, "Those are the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 19, 2005



three mgjor statistics that the national studies have shown
woul d be nost affected by having a seatbelt |aw on the books.

MR SMTH directed attention to the last three pages of the
handout, which show a report of the deaths on Al aska's hi ghways
in 2004. He noted that he listed only first nanes. He said he
thinks there are seven or eight nanes on the list that "relate
to either a daughter-in-law, or a son-in-law, or a grandchild."”

He said, "I did it because | thought it mght personalize what
we're tal king about. He broke the list down into how many
peopl e perished in various areas of the state. He asked the

committee to consider the value of the lives that were |ost that
m ght have been saved.

11:32: 47 AM

MR. SM TH tal ked about a survey that was conducted by Hellentha
and Associates during the nonth of February. He said 586
Al askans were randomy selected, phone calls were nade, and 84
percent of the overall nunbers claimed they wear their
seat belts. He said, "Qur observations show 77 percent, so it's
iffy on that nunber.”™ He listed the nunber of people by region
who said they wear their seatbelts as follows: 76 percent in

the Kenai Peninsula, 87 percent in the Anchorage area, 84.7
percent in the Matanuska-Susitna (Mat-Su) [Valley], and 82
percent in Fairbanks. M. Smth reported that 79.6 percent of
t he people surveyed said they favor |laws requiring seatbelt use.
He broke down the nunmbers of those who would favor a law as
fol | ows: 73 percent in the Kenai Peninsula, 75 percent in the
Anchorage area, 75 percent in the Mat-Su Valley, and 83 percent
i n Fairbanks. Only 5.4 percent of those people surveyed had
ever received a ticket. M. Smth continued as follows:

The correlation |I think needs to be nmade is that it's
a perception issue. It's not that we have troopers or
city police that are out running around witing
tickets; it's the fact that people know that that's a
possibility and therefore they're going to try to
follow the law, or they just want to follow the |aw
because it's a good thing to do. So, it's not Iike
we' ve got police out there chasing people down.

MR SMTH returned to the survey and reported the nunbers of
those who actually received a ticket as follows: 10. 7 percent
in the Kenai Peninsula, 4.1 percent in Anchorage, 7 percent in
the Mat-Su Valley, and 7 percent in Fairbanks. He said 60.8

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 19, 2005



percent of the people who were surveyed had had a famly nenber
or friend who was hurt or killed in an autonobil e accident.

11: 34: 50 AM

MR SMTH said it's inportant to know where the law is directed.
He said, "It really is reaching into the young. For sone
reason, a kid turns 16 and the brain goes soft, and they forget
about [wearing their seatbelts]."”

11:35:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER directed attention to the 2005 Al aska
Hi ghway Fatalities and said two of the people listed were young

men well known to her famly. One of them who was normally a
seatbelt user did not use one on that day. The other one was
wearing a seatbelt. She asked, "OF the 23 percent - give or

take - Al askans who do not use seatbelts, who are they and woul d
having a primary seatbelt |aw change their behavior?"

11: 36: 10 AM

MR SMTH said he could not say wth certainty, but
traditionally, around the country, "the nunbers have gone up by
about 10-12 percent,” which would nmean 6-8 people in Al aska that
woul d not have been killed. He said approximtely 54 percent of
the people who were killed in [vehicle-related] accidents in
Al aska were not using their seatbelts.

11:36: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER echoed the previous question from
Representative Elkins asking if a conparable result could be had
by raising the fine and increasing education about the
i nportance of [seatbelt use], "without allowing the Big Brother
aspect . "

11:37:14 AM

MR SMTH said that may be an answer. He noted that Washi ngton
state [fines those who don't wear seathbelts] $101, which he said

gets people's attention fast. He offered his understandi ng that
the legislature cannot legislate fines - it is a court process.
11:37: 35 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- March 19, 2005



CHAIR SEATON directed attention to page 6 of the survey. He
recalled that M. Smth had noted that many nore people in the
Kenai Peninsula had received a ticket for not wearing a
seatbelt, yet he noted it has the |owest nunber than any other
area in the state for using a seatbelt.

11:38: 01 AM

MR. SM TH responded, "It would appear to be a correlation. It
says here 10 percent had received tickets for not wearing a
seatbelt and the nunber of seatbelt use was 76 percent.” In

response to a followup question from Chair Seaton regarding
whet her people are just ignoring the $15 fine, he said it's hard
to make a judgnent. He said: "There's zero points; it's $15
dollars; it isn't a painful thing; but | think nore of it is the
perception that Al aska requires that you wear your seatbelt and
[that] you can be ticketed.”" He reiterated that 21 states wth
primary seatbelt |aws "have seen their nunbers increase.”

11: 39: 24 AM

MR SMTH, in response to a question from Representative ElKkins,
said he doesn't know how many of the deaths listed for 2004 were
due to notorcycle [accidents], but he said he could find out.

11: 39: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS reiterated that on one hand there are
peopl e who don't want the governnment "in the front seat of their
car,"” while on the other hand, passing [SB 87] would save lives.
He stated that he has had people tell him not to [pass the
bill]. He indicated that he is torn and asked how to build an
argunment "to help.”

11:40: 19 AM

MR. SM TH responded that the argunent he would make is that it's
a very vocal mnority [who are against a primary seatbelt |aw.
Those peopl e, he said, are obviously organized and are
contacting their legislators. He said he believes the survey is
accurate, and it indicates that the vast majority of Al askans do
want a primary seatbelt |aw

11:40: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAVRAS asked, "What if it's not a vocal mnority?
How do you build a bridge between these two groups of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 19, 2005



people w thout dismssing the value of the opinion of either
group?"

11:41: 56 AM

MR SMTH said the reason he requested that the survey ask
peopl e whether or not they support a primary seatbelt |aw was
because that was the only way he could think to answer the
question of what percentage of people in the state of Alaska
have strong feelings about the state enacting that |aw. He
reiterated that 79.6 percent thought it was a good idea. He
said he doesn't know how el se to answer.

11:42: 36 AM

JAMES GARHART, aka "Lazy Muntain Jim" testifying on behal f of
hinsel f, stated, "I don't think that this should take place."
He said, "I'm one-eighth Choctaw, so |I'm used to neaningless
assurances. " He stated that when the original [secondary]

seatbelt |aw was being discussed, assurances were nade that it
woul d never becone a primary |aw. He said if [HB 87 passes],
the original seatbelt |aw should be overthrown "for having been
passed with fraud and deceit."”

MR. GARHART said he imagines that the six or seven people it's
said would be alive today if a primary seatbelt |aw had existed
at the time probably wouldn't have worn their seatbelts anyway
and would still [have died].

11:45: 35 AM

CI NDY  CASHEN, Nat i onal Counci | on Alcoholism and Drug
Dependence, stated that 84 percent of Al askans are already using
their seatbelts. She noted that the gap is in teenagers and

young adults, ages 16 to the late 20s, as was noted previously.
She said last year the legislature passed a graduated driver's
| icense |aw, which provided an incentive for youth to wear seat
belts, because if they get pulled over for any infraction, they
have to start the count over for their six-nonth wthout
infractions before qualifying for their licenses. She concl uded
that having a primary seatbelt law is an incentive for youth to
wear their seatbelts.

M5. CASHEN nentioned M. Cooper's l|ate son, Brant Cooper, and

said, "We'll never know if he would have worn his seatbelt.”
She stated that her own son, who is nearly 17, "will be wearing
his seatbelt if he knows the police might pull him over.” She

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- March 19, 2005



added, "That's what it takes." She indicated that when youth
are in a vehicle with their parents they nay even be the ones to
rem nd everyone to wear a seatbelt, but when they are in a
vehicle with only other youth, they get distracted. She sai d,
"If one of themis not wearing their seatbelt in the vehicle and
there's a crash, they becone a weapon to the other people.” She
said she just attended a Lifesavers Conference [on Hi ghway
Safety Priorities], during which she saw footage of what happens
when one person is not buckled in. She remarked that "it's not
pretty; no one ever wants to see that."

11:47:45 AM

M5. CASHEN echoed M. Smth's remarks that there is a vocal
mnority, but studies show that the silent mmjority supports a
primary seatbelt [law. She specul ated that the reason that
peopl e may be opposed to the bill and don't want to be pulled
over is because they could be repeat drunk driving offenders,
for exanpl e.

11:48: 43 AM

CHAIR SEATON said he doesn't want it said that anyone who
comments against the bill is a drunk driver. He stated that
there are school board nenbers that have witten in opposition
to the bill.

11:48: 56 AM

M5. CASHEN reiterated that it's a silent majority that supports
that bill and a vocal mnority that opposes it. She said, "This
is not about Big Brother; this is about saving lives and saving
a lot of noney."

11:49: 40 AM

CHAI R SEATON said unfortunately the survey question just asks,
"Shoul d seatbelts be required?” He noted that seatbelts are
al ready required. He stated his concern that people answering

this question may be considering whether the state should not
make it a requirenment or leave the law as is.

11: 50: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said there is another mnority group:
those who drive into a bridge abutnent. He said those people
are trying to conmt suicide and rarely live through it. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- March 19, 2005



said, "I don't think a primary seatbelt bill wll affect that
subgroup of people.” Second, he stated that vocal mnorities
have rights and are entitled to nake their point known. He
enphasi zed that he thinks the fact that these people are witing
is inmportant.

CHAIR SEATON rem nded Representative Gatto and the other
commttee nenbers that he would like to continue with public
testinony and hold commttee discussion for |ater.

11:51:12 AM

DARW N BIVWER, President, Cabaret Hotel Restaurant & Retailers
Associ ation (CHARR - fornerly: Cabaret Hotel and Rest aur ant
Retail Association, from which the acronym derived), testified
on behalf of CHARR in opposition to SB 87. He said there
currently exists a seatbelt |aw The survey points out that a
hi gh percentage of Al askans are in favor of a mandatory seatbelt
law, which the state has. He said the question is whether
"these people want to have the primary seatbelt law" He
stated, "We feel that this is an infringenment on Al askans' right
to choose.” He offered his understanding that "80-sonme percent”
already wear their seatbelts, whereas "70-sone percent" felt
that there should be a mandatory seatbelt |[|aw. He concl uded
that nore people already voluntarily wear seatbelts than even
say there should be a law for requiring it. He said, "It is a
Big Brother issue; it is an issue of whether or not Al askans
have their rights infringed by being stopped for another
reason.” He said it's already been noted that there are already
many reasons to [stop soneone driving a vehicle].

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said there is one group that argues that a
primary seatbelt |aw would save lives, because if it's a law
nore people w il buckle up, and another group advocates that "it
w Il reduce drunk driving, because drunk drivers don't want to
have anot her probable cause reason for being stopped.” He asked
why CHARR takes an opinion on the issue. He clarified, "Is it
because they're interested in primary safety, or are they
interested in probable cause stops for ... drunk driving."

MR. BI VEER responded that Al aska already has sone of the toughest
drunk driving |[|aws. For exanpl e, the [blood alcohol
concentration] (BAC) for drunk driving has been reduced to .08.
He conti nued:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 19, 2005



If a police officer is unable to tell whether or not a
person is inpaired by their ability to drive, then ..

why is there another reason to stop this person other
than a seatbelt? W're talkin' seatbelts that are

visible - that would be the shoul der harness. Sone
seatbelts don't have a shoulder harness, and that
woul d not be visible to a police officer. It's not a
drunk driving issue; this is a matter of invasion of
privacy.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS indicated that he doesn't know why CHARR
and MADD are testifying, other than the fact that they have the
right to do so.

MR. BIVWER answered, "Because we are nenbers of Al aska
society, and we have a right to be here, as well. And we're
just expressing our opinion.” He noted that [CHARR] just had a
board neeting last week and this issue was raised. As a
representative of the industry, he said he is just making the
point that [those in the industry] don't |ike the invasion of
privacy which [the bill] would provide.

CHAI R SEATON t hanked M. Biwer for pointing out the statistica
conpari son between those who favor a seatbelt |aw and those who
al ready wear a seatbelt.

11:56:42 AM

KEVI N QUI NLAN, Chief of Safety Advocacy, National Transportation
Safety Board (NTSB), announced that he is testifying with the
authority of Ellen Engleman Conners - Chair, who was appointed
by President George W Bush two years ago. He said NTSB is an
i nvestigation agency; it does not regulate or tell states what

to do, but asks states to do the right thing. |In this case, he
added, [NTSB] is asking the commttee to give a favorable report
to the bill. He reported that over 90 percent of al

transportation fatalities occur on highways, and the nunber one
def ense against notor vehicle injuries and fatalities is to use

a seatbelt. He added that that's also the nunber one defense
agai nst drunk drivers. He reminded the conmttee that [wearing
a seatbelt] does prevent ejections and wll reduce fatalities

and injuries.

MR. QUINLAN noted that the previously referenced survey is
consistent with studies done throughout the country. He said
there's about a 70-80 percent approval rate of prinmary seatbelt
|l aws. He added that "the questions have been worded differently

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- March 19, 2005



than was done in Al aska." He noted that there has been nuch
di scussion on the effect on high-risk populations. He expressed
his profound synpathy to [M. Cooper] over the loss of his son
and said seat belt use anong teens is so low He added, "And we

know that it will increase with the primary seatbelt |aw, just
as it wll increase safety belt wuse anong alcohol-involved
drivers." He reported that, nationally, 72 percent of Hi spanics

and 68 percent of African Anericans support the [seatbelt] |aws.
In the states that have the |aws, he said, the objective is not
to wite tickets but to get people to wear their seatbelts. He
said, "You certainly want to have enforcenent, but nore
i nportantly, you want to have educati on about enforcenent."”

MR. QUI NLAN said the NTSB believes that [a primary seatbelt |aw
is the nost effective action that can be taken to reduce hi ghway

fatalities and injuries. He said it wll pay benefits every
year, much 1like the benefits of the permanent fund. He
expressed support of the previous testinony of M. Smth, M.
Cashen, and WM. Cooper. He concluded that Anericans are
basically | aw abiding people who ook to the legislature to set
the standard. He said, "If you set the standard saying that you
shall, nost Anericans wll, and nost of the renmainder wll
change their behavior based on enforcenent and education.” He
said, "You can reach 95 percent,” and he listed states that
have, i ncluding: Hawaii, California, Oegon, and Wshington.

He added that the only way he knows [it is possible to reach
that percentage] is through a primary seatbelt |aw.

CHAIR SEATON said he was stuck by reading that M. Cooper's
son's autopsy revealed nmarks indicating that he had been wearing
a seatbelt, while his friends who survived had not been. He
asked M. Qui nl an  whet her he has found through hi s
i nvestigations that that scenario is comobn or not.

12: 01: 42 PM

MR. QU NLAN responded that Chair Seaton is asking him to
specul ate based on an investigation and crash of which he
doesn't know the details. Notw thstanding that, he said, having
been involved in a crash which totaled his owm car, he did have
seatbelt injuries, including bruising and stiffness. He said he
didn't go through the w ndshield, and he was driving. He said,
"I don't know what particular factors m ght have been |ifesaving
for the two other people in the car, but | find that to be
atypical ."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 35- March 19, 2005



CHAIR SEATON clarified that he was just asking if this scenario
is atypical and if there is any data avail able. He said he
thinks M. Quinlan answered the question.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there is any data that indicates
that airbag deploynent has nore to do with preventing injury
t han seatbelts.

MR. QU NLAN answered that, as Representative Gatto well knows,
the preferred conbination is the use of the seatbelt plus the
ai rbags, because the airbags in nost cars are frontal air bags

designed for frontal crashes. He noted that "side curtain”
airbags are very effective in reducing injuries, but are nost
effective when used with a safety belt. The answer to the

question, he concluded, is that "you have to use both."

12:04: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that Alaska statute exenpts
school busses. He asked M. Qinlan if he believes that [the
use of seatbelts should be required on school buses].

MR. QU NLAN replied that that's an excellent question. He said
NTSB has investigated between 5-10 school bus crashes over
several years, and in each the dynam cs of the crash have been
docunent ed, including what happened to the passengers inside the
school bus. He said school buses are designed wth
"conpartnentalization” to keep the student in their seat area.
The seats, as they are currently constructed, are not designed
for seatbelts. Wen the forces of the bus crashes were anal yzed

and docunented in simulations, it was determned that if
seatbelts had been used they would have actually caused nore
harm t han good. He concluded that while seatbelts in schoo

buses may be advisable, the seats would have to be redesigned
first.

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG asked i f t he seats shoul d be
redesi gned.

MR. QUI NLAN said NTSB has recommended that the National H ghway
Traffic Safety Administration do the research into that. In
response to a followup question from Representative G uenberg,
he said the adm nistration has begun the process, but he doesn't
know t he current status.

12: 07: 22 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 36- March 19, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would |ike that information.
He noted that during his early terns in the |legislature back in
1986 and 1987, there was legislation regarding this issue. He
said he doesn't know why that research, which could save sone
children's lives, has not been conpleted in 20 years.

MR, QU NLAN reiterated that NITSB's purpose is to be objective,
find out what's wong, and make recommendati ons for change.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that Al aska statute al so exenpts
those delivering the U S. nmil and newspapers. He asked M.
Quinlan if he believes that those people should be required to
wear seatbelts.

MR. QUINLAN replied that the board does not have a specific

reconmendati on on that. He said there may be good and valid
reasons to exenpt them and the board would certainly |eave that
to the wisdom of the |egislature. In response to a followup

guestion from Representative Guenberg, he clarified that he
literally is not authorized to talk about sonmething "where we
don't have a recomendation.”

12:10: 44 PM

DEBORAH CHOROVANSKI HULL-JILLY, Acting Chief, Community Health &
Emer gency Medi cal Servi ces, Division of Public Heal t h,
Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS), testified on
behal f of the departnent in support of SB 87. She pointed out
that what is true about seatbelt use nationally is also true in
Al aska, based on data that both DHSS and the Departnent of
Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF) collects on notor
vehi cl e crashes. She reported: "I'n 2002, in Al aska, unbelted
occupants in notor vehicle crashes were 17 tinmes nore likely to
die than belted occupants, and 6 tines nore likely to sustain a
maj or injury.” She reported that the consequences of serious
crash injuries in Alaska are also graver than in other states,
because access to nedical care is nore chall enging. She stated
that the Alaska Trauma Registry, wthin Comrunity Health &
Enmergency Medical Services reports that unbelted crash victins
are nore likely to sustain a serious brain injury and nore
likely to be discharged with a permanent disability. Every year
there are about 100 new brain-injured Al askans added to that

popul ation and 30 new pernmanently disabled crash victins. She
reported that unbelted crash victins are also nore likely to be
uninsured and to bill Medicaid for their nedical care. She
continued, "About one-third of them fall into one of these

categories, but all crashes resulting in injury have an econonic

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -37- March 19, 2005



i npact on society." She noted that between the close of session
| ast May and the beginning of the current one [in January], 42
unbelted crash victinse died in Alaska, and 29 suffered head
i njury. Si xty percent of those injury crashes during that tine
occurred in non-urban centers of Alaska, while 20 percent
occurred in small conmunities. She stated, "This is an issue
that affects all Al askans."

CHAI R SEATON requested that Ms. Hull-Jilly provide the conmttee
with a copy of the statistics she just quoted and where the
acci dents occurred.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked for the nunber of notorcycle
fatalities.

MS. HULL-JILLY said she doesn't know but can find out.

12: 15: 06 PM

CHAIR SEATON invited M. Smth back before the commttee to
of fer a perspective regardi ng previous testinony.

12:17:10 PM

MR. SM TH of fered the foll ow ng:

| think that M. Cooper m sspoke. His son was ejected
from that autonobile crash when it hit the rock wall

32 mles off the highway. And the two ... 17-year-old
girls - one was also ejected. And there has not been
a final disposition in her case, but basically she
went to Seattle and was connected to equipnent. I

nmean she's in terrible, terrible shape if she's not

al ready dead. And the third girl was paralyzed from
the neck down in that crash.

MR SMTH, in response to Chair Seaton, said he would ask [M.
Cooper]. He added, "I know that his son was ejected ...."

CHAI R SEATON said he doesn't know if the seatbelt broke or not.

MR. SM TH responded, "I've not heard anything about seatbelts in
relationship with his son.™

12: 18: 18 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 38- March 19, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that statute says a person may
not operate a notor vehicle unless restrained by a safety belt.
He said the term notor vehicle is defined as "a vehicle which is
sel f-propelled, except a vehicle noved by human or ani mal
power." He opined that that would include notorcycles and all-
terrain vehicles (ATVs). He asked whether the use of the term
"notor vehicle" needs to be redrafted, because he said he
doesn't think anyone intends to put seatbelts on notorcycles.

MR SMTH agreed regarding there being no intent to put
seatbelts on notorcycles and he suggested that is an issue to be
considered. He added that he is not a | awer.

12:19:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG - regarding the term "operate" -
rem nded the conmttee that that can include turning on the
radi o. He said he doesn't think anybody intends to require a

seatbelt to be worn while soneone is sitting in a car just
operating a radio.

MR. SM TH concurr ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that there is a long history of

"sone legislation concerning ... seatbelts in school busses.™
He asked M. Smith if he is aware of anything that has been done
in Alaska towards this issue. He added, "I wasn't very

satisfied with the answer we got."

MR SMTH said he is not famliar with any studies done or
efforts being nade. He said he received the sanme explanation
that the commttee did regarding the construction of school
buses in a conpartnentalized way.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Smth to comment on the other
previously nentioned exenption for newspaper and mail delivery
peopl e.

12:21:40 PM

MR SMTH indicated that the exenption is nmeant for the tine
when those drivers are driving down a residential street and
getting in and out of the vehicle, but that it is not intended
to exenpt them from wearing seatbelts while driving a |onger
di stance, for exanple, from the starting point to the delivery
ar ea.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 39- March 19, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG remarked that now [nail] boxes are
sonetinmes set up in a way that allows the driver to deliver the
mail without ever having to get out of the vehicle. He
suggested that M. Smth m ght consider that issue.

12:22: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he was on a school board that | ooked
into the issue of seatbelts on school buses. He pointed out
that school buses are very tall, and he explained that that is a
deli berate design to keep the children well above the height of
i npact from anot her vehicle. He said, "Wwen it falls over on
its side, that's another story. Regarding nail delivery, he

surmsed that the exenption nay exist because it would be
i npossible for the contracted mail carriers [who drive their own
vehicles] to deliver the mail on the right side of the vehicle
where the mail boxes are while sitting on the left.

12:24:26 PM

M5. W CKERSHAM spoke to a previous analogy that was given as to
the right to bear arns. She said she thinks Senator Bunde woul d
argue that the ability to bear arns is a right, driving is a
privil ege. Driving is conducted on public roads. Wth a
privilege, she said, cones responsibility. The |egislature has,
in the past, worked to create statute that protects people's
safety when they are "in a sonewhat vulnerable position,"” and
the Division of Mtor Vehicles has <created regulations to

further that effort, as well. She concluded, "Senator Bunde
woul d argue that - being as though it's a privilege, not a right
- when it starts to negatively affect other individuals through
i nsurance premuns, ... nedical costs, [and] ... perhaps in a

situation where one passenger isn't wearing a seatbelt and is
thrown around the vehicle injuring other people, that's when we
need to reevaluate the privilege and determne what is in the
best interest of the residents as a whole."

CHAI R SEATON remarked that, because of the unanswered questions
still at large, the bill would not be passed out of commttee
t oday.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER of fered a scenari o whereby she is driving
and asks her husband, who is a passenger in the car, to put on
his seatbelt, which he declines to do. She asked who woul d get
the ticket if she were pulled over.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -40- March 19, 2005



M5. W CKERSHAM answered that Representative Gardner's husband

woul d receive the ticket. However, if it was her child who was
not belted in, it would be Representative Gardner who received a
ticket. In response to a question from Chair Seaton, she

confirmed that the responsibility of the driver applies to
hi m hersel f and "chil dren bel ow the age of 16."

CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.

12: 28: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated his strong support for wearing
seatbelts and said that people who don't wear them are either

fool hardy, rebellious, or don't care about their life or the
lives of others, and he said that "all of us have probably fit
into one of those categories at one time or another.” He

conpared not wearing a seatbelt as being simlar to playing
Russian roulette. He expressed respect for the sponsor of the
bill and to the people who testified; however, he stated that he
is unable to support the bill in its present form He said he
thinks the state needs appropriate |aws, but he doesn't want to
turn Alaska into sonme kind of Big Brother or "nanny" state. He
said, "W already have seatbelt |laws and, at sone point, | think
people need to start taking personal responsibility for their
actions.”" He said the kindest thing he can say about the bil
is that it is inpractical. He explained, "No cop can drive down
the highway, as far as |'m concerned, and tell if a driver is
wearing his seatbelt. Ergo there's no probable cause to pull

sonebody over to wite a ticket, unless we put a flashing
light on top of the car to indicate a seatbelt's not being
wor n. " He said he's alnost afraid to have brought that up,
because soneone nmay decide that's a good idea.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN said the bill appears to give a carte
bl anche opportunity for |law enforcenent people to pull soneone
over at any tine, wthout probable cause, and he enphasized that
he thinks that's a dangerous thing in a free society. He added,

"The fact of the matter is, ... any l|law enforcenent officer
worth his salt can already find legitimate reasons to pul
sonebody over." He rem nded the conmttee that he is an ex-
police officer and, as such, he has pulled cars over for various
reasons, including basic traffic violations, driving like a
drunk, having burned out |icense plate lights, and operating the
vehicles wunsafely in sone nanner. He reiterated that he

strongly supports wearing a seatbelt, but added, "Unfortunately,
we can't | egislate conmmopn sense.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -41- March 19, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated his intention of speaking directly
wi th Senator Bunde. He reiterated his conflict is over the two
basic issues of saving lives versus invading privacy. He
expressed his appreciation of the testinonials from Lieutenant
Sharp and M. Cooper, and of those who have been on |ocation at
acci dents, such as Representative Gatto.

12: 32: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he appreciates both sides of the
I ssue. He stated his concern is that in sone parts of his
district when people are pulled over, nmany tinmes the police stop
goes beyond the original reason for the stop. He offered an
exanple that if sonmeone doesn't have the current proof-of-
insurance card in the car, the car is inpounded, which results
in an expensive and | ong process to get the vehicle back.

12:34:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reiterated his concern that the terns
"notor vehicle" and "operate"” need to be nore narrowy defined.
He al so questioned the term "safety belt", and he stated concern
that there has not been a clear answer regarding the school bus
i ssue. He said he participated in the House Health, Education
and Soci al Services Standing Commttee neetings of 1985
regarding the school bus issue and the studies had not been
conpleted at that tine. He added, "And kids have died since
t hen. ™

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she tries to keep an open mnd

during bill hearings. She revealed that she walked into the
hearing for SB 87 thinking she could not support the bill and
guestioning whether she would support noving the bill out of
commttee; however, the testinony really affected her. She said
she doesn't know if she will ultinmately support the bill or not.

Not wi t hstanding that, she said she thinks it's unarguable that,
wWith rare exceptions, seatbelts do save lives. She stated that

that's not the issue and that's not what the bill addresses.
What the bill addresses, she said, is whether to have "primary
stops.” She said she has a primary problem with that, and she

wi shes that the survey had specifically asked that question.
She said she thinks a better approach mght be having higher
fines and pronoting education regardi ng seatbelts.

12: 36: 31 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -42- March 19, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS stated that, in its present form he
cannot support the bill, but he would certainly support raising
the fines for not wearing a seatbelt and increasing education
regardi ng public safety.

12: 36: 51 PM

CHAI R SEATON announced that SB 87 was heard and hel d.
#

CHAI R SEATON announced that a subcommittee would neet at 7:45
a.m on Tuesday, March 22 to address HB 114. He said a new
committee substitute would be made avail abl e. Chair Seaton said
the bill would be rolled into a broad omibus bill - HB 53. He
t hanked t he nenbers of the subconmmttee.

SB  87-SEAT BELT VI OLATI ON AS PRI MARY OFFENSE

12:39:27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred back to SB 87. He noted that
sonme nenbers of the Bush caucus and people from rural Al aska
have contacted him regarding SB 87. He asked [the sponsor] to
be certain that their voice is heard.

12: 40: 12 PM

CHAIR SEATON let the commttee know that there would be a
potential anmendnent offered to exenpt comunities wth fewer
than 5, 500. However, considering the data given by the
Departnent of Health and Social Services, he said it sounds |ike
the mpjority of the accidents resulting in deaths and brain
trauma are occurring in [rural] areas. He said it will be a
difficult balancing act, but he looks forward to working wth
the sponsor to find out if he wants to include notorcycles and
four-wheel ers, for exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO referred to |[Representative Ranras']
reference to testinony from Mthers Against Drunk Driving
( MADD) . He stated for the record that no nenber of MADD had
testifying [on behal f of MADD|

12: 41: 33 PM

M5. CASHEN, in response to a request for clarification from
Chair Seaton, reiterated [out of range of the mcrophone] that
[ al though she is a nenber of MADD], her testinony today on SB 87

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -43- March 19, 2005



was nade on behalf of the National Council on Al coholism and
Drug Dependence.

[ SB 87 was heard and hel d. ]

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
12:44: 17 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -44- March 19, 2005



